SEMINAR HANDOUT Microsoft ® Word – Introduction to the Applied Epic Interface

Microsoft ® Word – Introduction to the Applied Epic Interface Install Free Set

SESSION HANDOUT



APPLIED NET CLIENT NETWORK CONFERENCE www.appliednet.com



Prepared for Applied Systems Client Network and Applied Systems

Applied Systems Client Network

2340 South River Road Des Plaines, IL 60018 Phone: 800-605-1045 Fax: 224.220.1443

Applied Systems, Inc.

200 Applied Parkway University Park, IL 60484 Phone: 708-534-5575 Fax: 708-534-8016

Copyright © 2015 by Applied Systems Client Network, Inc., 2340 S. River Road #311, Des Plaines, IL 60018. Protection claimed in all forms and matters of copyrightable material and information now allowed by law or hereafter granted including both electronic and conventional distribution of herein products. Reproduction or transmission unless authorized by ASCnet in writing. All rights reserved. Specific product information regarding Applied TAM®, Vision®, Epic® and related products and services, including any related manuals, documentation, and/or materials prepared by Applied Systems for purposes of AppliedNet 2015 or otherwise are the exclusive property of Applied Systems, Inc. Applied Systems retains all right, title, and interest therein, including copyright interests and other intellectual property rights. Information relating to products and services owned or licensed by third parties (ex: Microsoft, Excel, etc.) and all interests therein are the property of the respective owners, and no endorsement or ownership of third party products or services should be implied by their mention and use. All workflows are suggested and common workflows. Users of this material agree that neither Applied Client Network nor Applied Systems can be held liable for any omissions or errors within the guide.

SESSION HANDOUT Microsoft[®] Word[®]- Introduction to the Applied Epic Interface



Original Author:

Jennifer Godwin, Applied Systems

Updated By:

Todd Arnold	AB Solutions, Inc.	8/1/2013
Marcia Priest	AB Solutions, Inc.	8/8/2015

Target Audience:



SESSION HANDOUT Microsoft[®] Word[®]- Introduction to the Applied Epic Interface



Table of Contents

Introduction to the Proposal Workshop
Word Configuration7
Pesky Advanced Options7
Quick Access Toolbar8
Design Mode8
Applied Menu Add-In and Applied Save and Exit9
Importing Templates
Editing Templates in Word 14
Inserting Date Fields14
Epic Data Fields15
ASK Variables
IF Statements17
Replicate Commands20
Summaries of Insurance / Proposal Templates
Customizing for Your Agency24
Copying Templates24
Editing Templates25
Application Specific versus Cover Pages
Proposal Groups
Generating Proposals at the Account Level
Appendices
Appendix 1: Attachment Templates
Associations
Template Folder
Attachment Defaults31
Distribution
Comments
Appendix 2: Attachment Template Folders
Appendix 3: Other Classes and Handouts from the Proposal Track Series



Seminar Type: Management

Seminar Level: Basic: An introductory level course is basic in nature and addresses fundamental concepts. We expect attendees to have a basic level of insurance knowledge, have been oriented to an agency's processes. For functional courses, it is <u>not</u> necessary for the attendee or participant to have previous knowledge of the agency management system or software program.

Class Description: This is the first session in the Epic version of the Proposal Track. You will install the free set of proposal templates and be introduced to the Applied Epic/Word interface. We will walk through the basic functions of Adding a Template, Copying Templates, Template Associations, and Applied Epic Data Fields. Also provided are details on management of form letter and proposal templates through the use of Template Folders and Proposal Groups.

This session will provide you the basics of how to use each of the functions within the Applied Epic/Word Integration. We will be focusing on Summary / Proposal templates for this series of classes, though all of the tools also apply to attachment templates.

Learning Outcomes:

- Create attachment templates using the basic functions of Applied Epic Data Fields.
- Install a full set of proposal documents on your system for customization.
- Implement agency specific versions of Summary and Proposal templates.

Assumptions: This seminar is based on the following Applied Epic Version 2014 MU6 Microsoft ® Word Version 2010, 2013



Introduction to the Proposal Workshop

The Applied Epic/Word Integration is one of the most powerful tools in your automation arsenal. Utilizing this integration provides your agency the ability to use client detail that already exists in Epic.as well as standardize the wording and look and feel of the documents that are generated by your staff that represents your agency. Using this integration increases your service staff efficiency by minimizing the need to manuscript the wording of every document that is generated as correspondence to your clients.

We will be concentrating in this series of classes on Summary/Proposal Templates. All of the tools we will discuss during class also apply to Attachment Templates. For additional details on Attachment Templates, please see Appendix A at the end of this handout.

The intention of this session is to provide you with a set of workable Epic templates that you will customize to match your agency's branding – including, but not limited to your colors, font family, logo, photos, etc.

PLEASE READ THIS FIRST

This is a demonstration/hands on session. It is highly recommended that you attend as many of the Proposal Track sessions as possible after this class to develop the skills you will need to continue to customize your templates. The knowledge gained from these sessions will be critical in your ability to continue updating your templates once back at your office.

If you are reading this *prior* to arriving in Las Vegas for Applied Net 2015, here is a list of tasks that you should complete and bring with you to the workshop:

- 1. Access <u>absolutionsinc.com</u> downloads page and download the Free Proposal Set Applied Epic – Commercial Lines (zip) file. Be sure to save this file to a location you will remember or write it down.
- 2. Follow the instructions in this handout to import the proposal templates into your desired Applied Epic database. Please see the next section for step by step instructions.
- 3. Have a list of the fonts and font sizes, along with the RGB (Red/Green/Blue) color numbers for any colors you wish to incorporate in your templates Bring those with you to class.
- 4. If you have picture files (e.g. logos, or otherwise) that you wish to use during the workshop, have them loaded/accessible on the laptop you will be bringing to class.

If you are reading this *after* arriving in Las Vegas for Applied Net 2015, do not worry. You can still attend the series of classes and learn/practice some new tips and techniques. If possible, please attempt to complete steps 1 and 2 above prior to this class. If that is not possible, we will have a few of the template files available to copy and import into your Applied Epic system.



Word Configuration

Before we start working within the Applied Epic/Word Integration, there are a few items we may want to configure so that working within the templates is easier.

Pesky Advanced Options

First, let's **turn off** 3 Advanced Options that are designed to help the casual user of Word, but which will make the work of the more serious template builder more difficult. By default, all 3 of these options are turned on.

- When selecting, automatically select entire word
- Use smart paragraph selection
- Use smart cursoring



• Also review the Cut, copy and paste selections for any changes that might be useful there. Usually the defaults are okay except for Pasting from other programs where you may want to change to use Merge Formatting as the option.



Quick Access Toolbar

Next, let's add some commonly used functions to your Quick Access Toolbar so that you will not have to shift focus among your Ribbon Tabs so frequently.

There are two ways to add commands to the Quick Access Toolbar:

👿 📴 🤊 🗸 🍯 🗹 Navigat	tion Pane 🗮 🔀	Ŧ	_			
File Home Insert	Right Click	References	Mailings	Review	View	
Select View Properties	Delete Inst	Add to Quick	Access Toolbar			
Gridlines Table	✓ Abc Boy	<u>C</u> ustomize Qu	uick Access Toolba	ar		
Navigation		Show Quick Access Toolbar Below the Ribbon				
Search Document		Customize th Minimize the	e <u>R</u> ibbon Ribbon			
		A Y				

Right Click on the command where you

find it on the ribbons and then left click on "Add to Quick Access Toolbar"

-OR-

select "Customize Quick Access Toolbar", change the Functions to "All Functions" and then scroll through the list & move to the "Selected" section. Click OK when complete:

Design Mode

Once we start adding Applied Epic data fields into a template, in order to apply any formatting to those fields, we need to "remove content control". Content control can be viewed in design mode where controlled data fields will show up with "Group" indicators around them. It is possible to remove content control just by right clicking and then selecting "Remove Content Control" on grouped items, but it can be helpful to view your document in design mode to be able to see them. That particular command is located on the Developer ribbon. Since that is the only command that will be needed in most situations from that particular ribbon, add it to the Quick Access Toolbar. In most cases, unless you have had opportunity to need the Developer



ribbon before, this ribbon may not even be active within your version of word. In order to activate it, click on File, Options, Customize Ribbon and then mark the box to the left of Developer Ribbon and then click OK.

Once you have the Developer Ribbon activated, you can then right click on the design mode icon & left click on Add to Quick Access Toolbar or as

outlined above, access File, Options, Quick Access Toolbar and select that command and add it to your Quick Access Toolbar. Alternatively you can simply add the Design Mode icon through the "Customize Quick Access Toolbar" process mentioned above.



Applied Menu Add-In and Applied Save and Exit

Last but not least, add the Applied Add-In Menu to the Quick Access Toolbar. In order to access the Applied Add-In, you need to actually be editing a template within the Epic/Word Integration. Open Word within Epic, click the *Add-Ins* ribbon, right click on the *Applied* menu, then left click on *Add to Quick Access Toolbar*.

File	Hom	e Insert	Page Layout	References	Mailings	Review	View	Developer	Add-Ins
Blueto	ooth 🝷								
Applie	ed <mark>7</mark>	Add Group to	Ouick Access Tor	olbar					
		<u>Mag group to</u>	Quick Access for	JIJUI					

If desired you can add a separate option to your Quick Access Toolbar for "Applied Save and Exit". From *File, Options, Customize Quick Access Toolbar*, change the *Functions* to *Macros* then:

- 1. Select Project.Common.SaveExit Macro
- 2. Add to move to the right window



Now that we have all of our "easy to access" commands set in the Quick Access Toolbar, let's work with it in creating proposal templates.



Importing Templates

For this series of classes, we are going to import the Free Proposal set from the AB Solutions website to assist you in creating your own set of templates customized for your agency.

From the Homebase screen of your selected Applied Epic database (e.g. sample1 or production), click *Procedures – Import – Custom Items*.

File	Edit	Areas	Home	Lo
W	ednes	day, July	/ 06	-
	0.,	30 PM		_
Proc	edure	s Home		
Acco	ountin	g		
Acti	vities			
Job	Manag	gement		
Doci	ument	Manag	ement	
Inte	rface M	Manage	ment	
Polic	y			
Imp	ort			
0 C	ustom	Items		
o Pi	ospec	t Files		
o Pi	ospect	t Batche	s	
Exn	nrt			

The *Import – Custom Items* screen opens. If you haven't imported any items previously, this screen will be empty. Otherwise, previously imported files may show. Click the *Add* Icon:

W Procedures	٩	2		ctx-Ing1				- 8	×	/		
File Edit Areas Home	Locate Actions C	n Demand Access	Links Help						_			
Wednesday, July 06 6:58 PM	Home Locat	e Actions	On Demand *	Access •	S Links	N) Vew	▼ F	Print	•	Save	Undo
Procedures Home	Import - Custom I	ltems										
	- 🚺 Bat 🔺 Sta	tus	Cn	eated		Create	ed By					
Accounting	y 1 Imp	orted	1/:	80/2011		GODW	/INJ					
Activities	2 Imp	orted	1/3	80/2011		GODW	/INJ					
Job Management												



This opens the Select Files dialogue box. Navigate to the location of the [export] files (i.e. files downloaded from <u>absolutionsinc.com</u>), select that file and click **Open**.

Irganize 🔻 New	folde	r				四 •	
· Neithan	*	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size	1	
· Terris (Trease)		Free_Proposal_Set_Epic_Commercial_Lines	8/16/2013 5:07 PM	Compressed topp	486 KB		
		· Phanese (harmaging an an an and	1		-	- 11	
a second	î î î	· Past Proposition in the internet inter which	100000000000000000000000000000000000000		100.000		
a descenter of		👹 - mille die 11-straggend filtert.	provide a service of	Company Arrest	18.182		
		and the contract second the	Dist. 201 (10.7 - 20.7	Manual Statistics	101101		
a contract		a mentiongame incomentations	10-10-10-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-	Compression in the second	100000000		
	21	· Con Frances in State Second Land	0.0000000000000000000000000000000000000	Contactor and Cales.	1000100		No previo
		- Tag, Trapport, Mr. 1444. Commun. 14. Aug.	0.001001-0.0100	Company of Street, or	1.000		availabl
A more than		and taken the the stranger of	101003011081041	State Chapter Strength	10.100		
a human (1977)		and take the framework	0.0101041108784	Here Tayle Lawrence	121140		
a manual state	ш.	A 140 B R House Farm		Manual Andrew	101100		
		Trate from the property	Second second second	Manual Starts	10100		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		😹 Theo, Nagatan Ser, San, Shinemak Linea	1000000-006104	Company of States	16.788		
. constanting		· Ant Phone, "Ant - Charles and a state of the	111100-00120-002	No. or and	10.100		
The last open and the last		FARTHER CONTRACTOR (CONTRACTOR) (CONTRACT		distant inspire.	10140		
With second		Contracted enclosed revolution demonstrates	0015070703050908	mention mars	49100		
	ile na	me: Free Proposal Set Epic Commercial Lines					

Back at the Import – Custom Items screen you will see your file processing.

	JIC- CC	stom ttems	a contrad	Control Dis	Retres
	sat	- status	Created	Created By	
×		Imported	1/30/2011	GODWINJ	
	2	Imported	1/30/2011	GODWIND	
4	3	Processing	7/6/2011	GODWINJ	
				Notifications (1 of 6)	
				Tiotal calors (1 or o)	
				A file was successfully transferred to the cer	tral file storage
1				File: C:\Users\TEMP.IOADOM.008\Desktop\t	estofexport.zip
				Copyright and the copyright	
				Previous Next	

When processing of the file is complete and ready for import, the status will change to "Ready".

Bat	A Status	Created
1	Imported	1/30/2011
2	Imported	1/30/2011
3	Ready	7/6/2011

Note: the file will not update to "Ready" status automatically. To check its status, click on the Refresh link in the top right corner of the Import – Custom Items screen. Be patient; all good things come to he who waits



Select the file then click the *Import* button.

bort - Li	ustom Items				Refre
Bat	A Status	Created	Created By		
1	Imported	1/30/2011	GODWINJ		
2	Imported	1/30/2011	GODWINJ		
3	Ready	7/6/2011	GODWINJ		
				1.00	

The Import screen opens. Click on the *Summary/Proposal template* tab. All of the files available for import will be selected by default. You may unselect an item by unchecking the box to the left of the template title. You may change the details of each item by selecting the item in the list on the left and then modifying the details on the right. Next Click on the *Summary Cover Pages/Proposal Documents* tab and repeat these steps.

Summary of Insurance/Proposal Templates		
tzie +	Application Detail	 Template Details Supplemental Screens
Boler and Mach Limits Only - Current - Proposal	Boler & Machinery Detail	Implate
✓ Boller and Mach Limits Only - Marketed - Proposal	Boler & Machinery Detail	
Boler and Machinery - Current - Proposal	Boler & Machinery Detail	Title Boller and Mach Limits Only - Current - Proposal
 Boler and Machinery - Marketed - Proposal 	Boler & Machinery Detail	A tenored as seen tensingle
Business Auto - Current - Proposal	Business Auto Detail	C subset to rear readout
 Business Auto - Marketed - Proposal 	Business Auto Detail	O Import and replace existing template
Business Auto Limits Only - Current - Proposal	Business Auto Detail	Template to replace
Business Auto Limits Only - Marketed - Proposal	Business Auto Detail	
Commercial Prop Limits Only - Current - Proposal	Property Detail	Details
 Commercial Prop Limits Only - Marketed - Proposal 	Property Detail	17 August 199
Commercial Property - Current - Proposal	Property Detail	Proposa tempate
 Commercial Property - Marketed - Proposal 	Property Detail	Summary of Insurance template
Commercial Unib Limits Only - Current - Proposal	Unbrela Detal	Set as default Summary of Insurance ten
Commercial Limb Limits Only - Marketed - Proposal	Unbrella Detail	
Commercial Umbrella - Current - Proposal	Unbrela Detal	Mapped to custom form
 Commercial Umbrella - Marketed - Proposal 	Unbrella Detal	
Dwelling Fire - Current - Proposal	Residential Section - Dwelling Fire	
Dwelling Fire - Marketed - Proposal	Residential Section - Divelling Fire	Title A
Dwelling Fire Limits Only - Current - Proposal	Residential Section - Dwelling Fire	No items found

Once all files have been selected and modified, if desired, click on the *Import* button.



Note: Files will automatically be marked "Import as new template." If you click *Finish* and any templates with the same name already exist, an indicator will display in the Duplicate Found column and a Validation Error dialogue box will display.

Title 🔺		Du	plicate Found	Tem	nplate Detai
 Audit Past Due 				De	tails
 Audit to Customer 					
 Auto ID Cards 					
 Base Letter to Carrier 		*			
 Base Letter to Customer 		*			
				T	emplate to
				At	tachmen
	Validation	Error		x	
	Tenterentinen				c. h é
		Template I	titles must be uniqu	ie.	500-1
	W	. en proce			Sub-f
		0	к		curity
					,
					-
					kimika
				AL	civicy

Click **OK** on the error message. One by one select each template where a duplicate exists and either 1) change the name of the template or 2) click the radio button Import and replace existing template. Once details for all templates to be imported have been corrected, click the **Import** button. The status of the file will now show "Importing."

nport - C	Custom Items			
Bat	🔺 Status	Created	Created By	
1	Imported	1/30/2011	GODWINJ	
2	Imported	1/30/2011	GODWINJ	
3	Importing	7/6/2011	GODWINJ	

You will need to click on the **Refresh** link to update the status of your import process. Once the file says "Imported" you can exit the Import – Custom Items screen by clicking File, Exit or clicking the X in the top right corner.



Editing Templates in Word

There are two ways to open up Word and edit Summary / Proposal templates. From Home Base select **Configure**. From the Configure Menu, access **Policy**, and **Summary/Proposal Templates**.

Validation	
Do you wish to edil	t the template now?
Yes	No

- Choose the template and *Edit*. Clicking *Finish* in the Template Details area will generate a Validation box asking us if we want to Edit the Template Now. Answer **Yes** if to edit the template.
- Select Actions => Edit Template

Inserting Date Fields

Most proposal cover pages and letters begin with a date. To insert a date and time into a template, you can use Applied Epic's data field found under the Applied Menu or Word's Quick Parts field:

• Applied Epic's "Today's Date" Variable Click the *Applied* menu and select *Data*. In the *Data Field Selector* window, open the *GeneralDataMerge* folder and select the *Today's Date* variable.

This variable, when merged, reflects the date that the document was created. If the document is added as an attachment on an account, it always reflects that merged date.

This is the desired output for most agencies.

-OR-

 Microsoft Word's "CreateDate" Variable In Word 2010 or 2013, open the *Insert* ribbon bar and then click on *Date & Time*.



Then choose the date and time format that you would prefer, and don't forget to check the box to **Update automatically**.

When this variable is added to a template, it updates the date that the document was merged. This date remains static unless any changes are made to the document, at which point the date is updated to the date of that last edit. In other words, this variable reflects the date that the document was last modified.

This output is not desired by most agencies. Use it with caution.

SESSION HANDOUT

Microsoft[®] Word[®] – Introduction to the Applied Epic Interface

Epic Data Fields

The basics of inserting any Applied Epic data field into your template are:

Click the *Applied* menu and select *Data*.

- The *Data Field Selector* window displays. Double click on a *folder* to view its contents.
- To select a data field, do one of the following:
 - Double click on the *field name*.
 - Click on the *field name* and click the *right arrow* button.
- To go back to the previous set of folders, double click the *folder up* ⁽²⁾ button at the top of the list.

It's important to note that in Applied Epic, you can cut, copy, and paste data fields within a document or between two documents. Once you have something just right, there is no need to re-create it from scratch if you want to use it in a different document.

ASK Variables

Note that we will be reviewing ASK variables in greater detail in the "IF ASK Math SET Bookmarks" class in this series.

ASK variables are a great tool for obtaining data that the system doesn't "know" or have contained in a data field, but that the end user does. ASKs are very useful in attachment templates, but also helpful in some proposal templates. Care must be taken when using ASKS in proposal documents so that the description which defaults advises the user merging the proposal group which template applies to the question that is being asked.



🗄 🙂 👳	
Applied 🔹 p	AGE LAYOUT
<u>D</u> ata	
Ask <u>V</u> ariab	le
If <u>S</u> tateme	nt
<u>R</u> eplicate (Command
Save and <u>B</u>	xit
1	

👩 Detail Fields	
Policy Description	
Policy Number	
Policy Effective Date	
Policy Expiration Date	
Policy Source	
Policy Type Code	
,	
Insert	Cancel

Data Field Selector



Applied 🐐 ayout

Ask <u>V</u>ariable

If Statement

Save and Exit

Replicate Command

<u>D</u>ata

6

Refer

To add an ASK variable, within your template:

- Make sure your paragraph markers are on (click the *icon on your Home ribbon*)
- Reveal Code Hold down the *ALT* key and then click the *F9* key on your keyboard
- Place your cursor where you want the ASK variable to be inserted, click *Applied Menu, ASK variable*.

premaint Prompt Enter the premium amount for this endorsement (ie, 750.00) Response ✓ Default response It's Free!
Prompt Enter the premium amount for this endorsement (ie, 750.00) Response Ø Default response It's Freel
Enter the premium amount for this endorsement (ie, 750.00) Response 7 Default response It's Freel
It's Free

- Enter a variable name in the Variable Name field cannot contain spaces or non-alphanumeric characters.
- Enter the *Prompt* you want the end user to see when the ASK box pops up. You can put examples of how you want them to answer the question as shown above.
- Optionally add a *Default response* by clicking the box for Default Response. This is what will fill the ASK boxes answer area automatically. The end user will have an opportunity to type over this answer.
- Click *Insert* then *Cancel* to exit the ASK variable function.

Example of an ASK variable:

{ ASK premamt "Enter the premium amount for this endorsement (ie, 750.00)" \d "It's Free!" $\$ MERGEFORMAT }{ REF premamt }

NOTE: The REF portion of the ASK is where the answer is placed. By default, Applied Epic puts this directly after the ASK. However, the REF portion of the ASK variable can be cut and/or copied and used in other places in the document anywhere AFTER the ASK variable appears in the document.



ø

Referenc

A

IF Statements

Note that we will be reviewing IF statements in greater detail in the "IF ASK Math SET Bookmarks" class in this series. Ifs are often called "Conditional Statements". They are "true or false" statements. An IF statement uses an "operator" to compare specific information (i.e.: a field value in the database, or the result of an ASK variable) to a value entered in the IF statement. The format of an IF statement is:

[IF "Expression" Operator "Comparison Expression" "True Text" "False Text" }

Note the placement of the quotation marks in the above example. If there is no false, the last two quotation marks will have nothing between them, or may simply be removed.

Examples of uses of IF statements would include:

- Have the proposal say "No Coverage" if a specific vehicle does not have physical damage coverage included
- Eliminate an entire row from a proposal template if the limits field is blank. This is very useful in the commercial auto page where either CSL or split limits might be written, one template can very easily cover both coverage options.
- Add in wording for specific coverages. An example here is to add in a description of that "blanketed coverage" means if there is a Location 0 listed on the application.

To create an IF statement:

- Confirm your paragraph markers are on (click the ¶ icon on your Home ribbon)
- Reveal Code Hold down the *ALT* key and then click the *F9* key on your keyboard
- Place cursor where you want IF statement result to appear in the merged document.
- Click Applied Menu, IF Statement

If Statement Builder Box opens:

- Expression field is generally based on an Epic Data Variable but can also be based on the results of an ASK variable.
- To Add a Data Variable, with cursor in the *Expression* field, click on *Add* Applied *Epic Variable*, or you may use a "placeholder" and place the data field later.
- Double click on each applicable folder to navigate to the field you want to use in the IF Statement.
- Click *Insert*, then *Cancel*.

(Statement	
Expression	1
Operator	
Comparison expression	
	Numeric comparison
Expression Evaluates a	as True
Expression Evaluates :	as False
Expression Evaluates	as False
f Expression Evaluates	as False

ច 🗐 🛅 🖬 🕰) 🔻

Data

Ir

ibri

I

Applied 🔨 ayout

Ask Variable

If <u>S</u>tatement

Replicate Command



• The next field to complete is the Operator Field and the available values from the drop down are:

Operator	 Looks for an exact match in comparison expression Less than the value in comparison expression Less than or equal to comparison expression Not equal to comparison expression Greater than comparison expression
Evaluates as >	>= Greater than or equal to comparison expression

Select the appropriate value for the type of IF statement being built.

- The Comparison Expression field should be completed with the value you are comparing the value in the Expression field with.
- The TRUE field should contain what you want to pull into your merged document if the IF statement has a true result.
- The FALSE field should contain what you want to pull into your merged document if the IF statement has a false result (which could be nothing).

Example of completed IF Statement Builder box: If Statement Builder

If Statement Builder
If Statement
Expression CODE
Operator =
Comparison expression SPC
Numeric comparison
If Expression Evaluates as True
Special
If Expression Evaluates as False
Add Ask Variable Add Epic Variable Insert Cancel

• Click *Insert*, then *Cancel* to exit the IF statement.

SESSION HANDOUT

Microsoft[®] Word[®] – Introduction to the Applied Epic Interface



The resulting IF statement:

¶ #IF:" DOCVARIABLE· MasterAccountMerge.Policy.Line.LOB.Property.RiskMerge.Subjects.Subject.CausesOfLoss.SubCausLoss. Code*0*522 ¶ ¶

Let's break down what each piece of this IF statement means:

You can use place markers in any of these fields if you want to Insert the IF statement and then complete it manually.



Notes about True & False portions:

• You do not have to have ANY value in these fields if you don't want anything inserted into the document (example, if there is information in the 2nd address line of the customer's address you want whatever is in that field to pull into the document PLUS put a line return before it to separate it from whatever the 1st address line value is but if the field is empty you don't want anything to pull or any line returns entered to separate. Just leave the False portion blank. The IF statement will look like this:

DOCVARIABLE Master Account Merge. Account. Common. Common. AcctName*0*6 DOCVARIABLE Master Account Merge. Account. Common. Address. Address. Address1*0*1 Master Account Merge. Account. Common. Address. Address2*0*5 DOCVARIABLE Master Account Merge. Account. Common. Address. Address2*0*5 DOCVARIABLE Master Account Merge. Account. Common. Address. Address2*0*2 DOCVARIABLE Master Account Merge. Account. Common. Address. City*0*2 DOCVARIABLE Master Account Merge. Account Merge. Account Common. Address. City*0*2 DOCVARIABLE Master Account Merge. Accou

- You can format the text within the True and False portions of the IF statement any way you like. It can be bolded, italicized, bulleted, etc.
- Scanned images can be inserted into the True & False portions (example would be, if Prod1 is equal to CARJE1, enter this picture or signature graphic, etc.).



Replicate Commands

Replicate Commands are used to insert Schedules of Information into a template. Examples of schedules in Applied Epic are:

- Data from the policies selected to merge into the template
- Servicing Roles
- Any Schedule within application detail such as vehicles, drivers, Workers' Compensation class codes, Property Premises and Subjects, etc.

While Replicate commands can be inserted without also using a Table (as with policies or servicing roles), schedules of information generally have better results if they use a Table. The instructions below are for using the Replicate Commands with a Table.

Use tables to organize information and create interesting page layouts with side-by-side columns of text and graphics. Create a new blank table with the Table button under the *Insert* tab on the Ribbon and fill in the empty cells, or convert existing paragraphs of text (separated by a character such as a tab) to a table. A table can also be created from an existing data source, such as a database or spreadsheet. One of the best features of a table is the ability to format by column, row or cell. Tables are a great way to align schedules in Applied Epic.

Usually tables are used in conjunction with the replicate commands to create a schedule, for instance, a list of the vehicles on a policy. First create a two row table the way you want it, with the column headers and data fields, then insert the replicate commands after you have finished.

Steps:

- 1. Associate the document template with the appropriate application that schedule data fields will pull from.
- 2. Edit the document template.
- 3. Return at least once.
- 4. Create a table with 2 rows and as many columns as you want.
- Click once anywhere in the table, *right click* and then *left click* on *Table Properties*. Click on *Options* and UN-mark the box *Automatically resize to fit contents*. Optionally, *right click* on the table and select *Autofit* and *Fixed Column Width*
- 6. In the first row, type the headers for the schedule. Format as desired.
- 7. In the second row, insert your data fields (*Applied, Data Fields*) with whatever formatting, IF statements, etc. needed.
- 8. Adjust the column widths for the headers and data.
- 9. Place the cursor directly below the table.
- 10. Click Applied / Replicate Commands.
- 11. Your cursor will be at the end of the first Replicate command backspace once to remove the space between the field and the paragraph marker.
- 12. Place cursor at the end of the first Replicate command and hit the *Enter* button to create a return between the two commands.
- 13. Place your cursor at the end of the second Replicate command and remove the extra space between the field and the paragraph marker.



- 14. Take the mouse out to the left of the 2nd row containing the data fields and click with left mouse to select that row.
- 15. Click *CUT* or *CTRL+X*.
- 16. Select the return that is between the two Replicate commands and PASTE the cut row.

The end result will look similar to this:

Vehicles¶

Vehicle¤		Comp- Deductible¤	Collision- Deductible¤
{ ·DOCVARIABLE·BEGINREP }			
Image: Point of the set	I DOCVARIABLE∙ MasterAccountMerge.Policy. Line.LOB.BusinessAuto.Vehi cles.Vehicle.VehVIN*0*57·[]≭	DOCVARIABLE- MasterAccountM erge.Policy.Line. LOB.BusinessAu to.Vehicles.Cov erages.VehicleC overages.Compr ehensive.COMP. Deductible1*8* 61.∬≭	DOCVARIABLE- MasterAccount Merge.Policy.Li ne.LOB.Busines sAuto.Vehicles. Coverages.Vehi cleCoverages.C ollision.COLL.D eductible1*8*6 2.∬≭

Save the document and test it. Re-access and edit the template to adjust as necessary.



Summaries of Insurance / Proposal Templates

Summary of Insurance and Proposal Templates are built to merge coverage detail specific information held in Applied Epic application detail into Word documents. Summary of Insurance templates for the main coverages associated with ACORD application detail come pre-installed in your Epic database.

Pre-configured base Proposal templates are available for download and import from Applied Epic Help.

There are also free proposal sets for Applied Epic available from AB Solutions, Inc. on the downloads area of their website at <u>www.absolutionsinc.com</u>

LINKS	_
Policy	
Joarces	~
Statuses	-
Summary/Proposal Templ	
Supplemental Screens	~
Proofs	

To edit or create Summary of Insurance or Proposal templates, click on *Configure*, *Policy* then *Summary/Property Templates*.

The default list view is of the coverage specific templates themselves. You also have access to cover pages or other non-coverage specific pages by modifying your listview:

J	ome	LUCALE		ACCIONS	On Demand	ACCESS	LITINS	146		
:	Summary	of Insu		/Deanaca	Tomplator					
	Tale		~	Summary o	f Insurance/Propo	sal Templates				
	TICIE			Summary o	f Insurance Cover	Pages/Proposa	Documents			-
S	Workers C	ompens	_			- agos, roposa	, pocalitorito		litle	Ira



We will focus on coverage specific templates first. Templates identify how the template will be used.

Title	#Property	
Application detail	Property Detail	_
	V Proposal Template	
	Summary of Insurance temp	plate
	Set as default Summary	y of Insurance template
Entered	3/16/2012 - Todd Arnold	
Last updated	7/22/2013 - Todd Arnold	
Last used	0/29/2003 - Patea03	
roposal Groups	-	
Title 🔺		1
CL Summary		

A summary or proposal template can only be associated with one application detail.

For those templates that will not be associated with ANY specific application detail, ACORD or Custom Form, they will reside under the **Cover Pages/Proposal Documents** area.

A template can be BOTH a Proposal and Summary of Insurance template or just unique to Proposal or Summary. Also, for those templates identified to be used as a Summary of Insurance template, they can also be set as the default template that will be used when the End User generates a Summary of Insurance from the On Demand menu on a client account.

In the list view of the templates themselves, there are indicators for the type of template:

- **S** = Summary Only
- **P** = Proposal Only
- **B** = Both Summary and Proposal indicators marked

	Summary of Insurance/Proposal Templates						
	Title	Application Detail	Default	Туре 💌			
$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$	Accounts Receivable	Accounts Recei	No	S			
	Workers Compensati	Workers Compe	No	В			
×	Workers Compensati	Workers Compe	No	Р	_		
	Workers Comp Limits	Workers Compo	No	D			



Customizing for Your Agency

All of the templates that are available for Summaries and Proposals can be customized for your agency for such things as adding your agency logo, changing the font style and size, for adding color, etc.

In order to customize the Summary of Insurance templates they must be copied first as the base templates that are installed in your Applied Epic database cannot be modified. Although you CAN modify the Proposal templates you import, it is also strongly suggested that you copy the Proposal templates first before modifying.

Copying Templates

- Click to highlight the summary/proposal template you wish to copy.
- Click Actions, Copy Template on the options bar.
- In the popup window that displays, enter new agency specific

	He	ome - Docate -	O + Actions	On	🖻 Demand	•	Access	•		☆ Links
		Summary of Insuranc	Сору Т	empla	ite					
	h	Title	Edit Tei	mplate	е					et
4		Workers Compensati	Workers Com	ре	No	S				
	~	Watercraft - Current	Watercraft D	etail	No	S				Ap
	×	Truckers/Motor Carri	Truckers/Mot	or	No	S				
à	4	Transportation - Cur	Transportatio	n	No	S				
1	~			ee		-			=	

name of the template in the Copy To field:

		#International - Auto	Business Au	to	No	Р	
		#International - GL	General Liab	ility	No	Р	
	X	#International - K&R	Internationa	al K&R	No	Р	
		#International - VWC	Internationa	al V	No	Р	
	9	#International Prope	Property De	tail	No	Р	
		#Property	Property De				
		#Technology E&O	Technology	In t	this e	example of a	
		#Umbrella	Umbrella De	lis	t of s	Summary /	
1anagement		#VC Protector	VC Protecto	Pro	posal	Templates,	
lanagement		#VisionPak	Vision Pak	the	first	character of	
		#Vorkers Comp	Workers Co	ea	ach T	itle uses a	
		+Acts Rec/Valuable	Accounts Re symb		bol to identify an		
		+IAM-New	BAM	sort	: thos	se templates	
		+BAM - Renewal	BAM	that	were	e designed to	
ment		+CFC Online E&O	Technology		go to	ogether.	
		+Commercial Auto	Business Au		NO	۲	
		+Commercial Bond	Commercial	Bond	No	Р	
		+Commercial Flood	Flood Insura	anc	No	Р	
And the second se		⊥Crime - ACOPD	Crime Detail		No	D	

This name should contain characters that will easily identify it as an agency specific template, and if the agency will have multiple "styles" of templates, different leading characters should be used on each.

Titles, and their leading character indicators, can always be changed.

• Click *Finish* or press *[Enter]* to complete copy process.



Þ

Editing Templates

- Click to highlight the *summary/proposal template* you wish to copy.
- Click Actions, Edit Template

First-Named-Insured×

Additional·Named·Insured's¤

APPLNAME×

BEGINREP¶

ONINAME× ENDREP¶

The template will open within the Applied Epic/Word Interface	Home Local	e Actions	On Demand	d 🔹 🙀	▪ 🔅 Links
	Title ASI Workers Co Workers Compe	mp Workers	it Template Compe No Compe No	S	eta Anr
W Verdana 22 A A Az	ASEpic - Microsoft \ tees Mailings Review → 1 = + 1	View Develo	Add-Ins		Contractions of the second sec
Clipboard IS Font	► A THE THE THE AND A THE		Styles	Styles *	*
Commercial·Liabi	lity∙¶				
Company¤	Policy-Number¤	Eff-Date¤	Exp-Date¤	Premium¤¤	
ACCTNAME×	POLICYNUM×	POLEFFDATE× F	POLEXPDATE× L	INEESTIPREM¤¤	
1					_
Named-Insureds¶					=

Coverage¤	Limits
Each+Occurrence×	COVLMTEAOCCUR
Personal · and · Advertising · Injury ×	COVLMTPERSADVINJ
General·Aggregate×	COVLMTGENAGGAPPLTO

Editing functions are the same as outlined in the earlier section of this document.

To save the changes made, exit the document and click Yes when prompted to Save Changes.



Application Specific versus Cover Pages

Application specific templates are tied to a specific ACORD or Custom Form application. This allows the merging of coverage details, limits, forms & endorsements, as well as scheduled information such as drivers, vehicles, locations, subjects of insurance, etc.:

Detail	
Title	Workers Compensation - Current - Base Summary
Application detail	Workers Compensation
	Proposal Template
	Summary of Insurance template
	Set as default Summary of Insurance template

Cover Pages are not application specific and can be both cover pages as well as agency specific pages such as Agency Service Team pages, Commission Disclosure page, Agency Mission Statement, etc. To access these pages, change your listview under Configure/Policy/Summary/Proposal Templates section to *Summary of Insurance Cover*

Pages / Proposal Documents.

J	Home Lt	Juaite	ACCOLS	On Demand	ALLESS	LINKS	1 1 1 1 1 1	544	
	😫 Summary o	f Insumer		Toppolator					
	Title	<u> </u>	Summary o	f Insurance/Propos	al Templates				
	Workers Cor	mpens	Summary o	f Insurance Cover	Pages/Proposa	l Documents		Title Ti	ra
									_

The process for either copying the base template cover pages or creating your own is similar to those for Summary of Insurance/Proposal Templates.

Detail —	
Title	ASI Service Team Page
	Proposal document Summary of Insurance cover page Set as default Summary of Insurance cover page

Identify how you want to use the document and click *finish* to begin editing the document. All of the editing tools outlined in the above are available for use in creating this template.



Proposal Groups

Proposal groups are used to assist your end user in creating a proposal. They group proposal templates, both coverage specific and non-coverage pages, into a set of templates that allow them to easily select all the templates they intend to merge. You can put the pages in a specific order within the group although the end user still has the ability to change the order or add and remove pages while they are selecting the proposal they want to merge from the **On Demand** menu.

Proposal Groups are located under Configure / Policy / Proposal Groups

Policy	
Prefills	^
Proposal Groups	
Sources	

Proposal Groups do not exist by default and will need to be created, though if you import a set of templates the associated Proposal Group may come along with the templates.

To start, click the *Add* Icon and enter a name for the Proposal Group:

Detail	
Title Proposal - Commercial Lines - Free	Training Set
Entered 8/16/2013 - System User	
Last undated	
Last updated	
Last used	
Proposal Templates/Documents	
Title	Type Application Detail
✓ ~Cover Page	Document None
~Table of Contents	Document None
ADISCIAIMERS / Disclosures ADISCIAIMERS ADISCIAIMERS ADISCIAIMERS ADISCIAIMERS ADISCIAIMERS ADISCIAIMERS ADISCID	Document None
 Named Ins & Location Schedule 	Document None
~Property	Template Property Detail
~General Liability	Template General Liability Det
~Commercial Auto	Template Business Auto Detail
~Umbrella	Template Umbrella Detail
~Workers Compensation	Template Workers Compensation
~Crime	Template Crime Detail
~Equipment Floater	Template Equipment Floater D
~EDP	Template Electronic Data Proc
~Recommendations & Coverage Discussion Points	Document None
~Marketing Summary	Document None
~Premium Summary	Document None
	Finish
	Cancel

Give your new Proposal group a Title, and then click the *Add* Icon under Proposal Templates/Documents to begin selecting the templates you want to make part of this group:

Make your selections in both tabs – Proposal Templates (Application specific) and Proposal Documents (Non-app specific).

Click *Finish* once you have completed your selection.

Use the black up & down arrow keys to move the pages around in the grouping to get the order you want. The order you set here will be the default order when your users use this group at the Account level.

Click *Finish* to complete or *Add* to create another proposal group.



Generating Proposals at the Account Level

End users will click **On Demand** from the policy list screen and then select **Proposal** to get the merge process started.





Appendices

Appendix 1: Attachment Templates

Attachment templates use the same set of skills as proposal / summary templates. They are located in a separate area of Configure and have a few different configuration choices.

Areas

Thursday, August 29

2:11 PM

System Generated Attach..

Document Management

Configure Home

Account

Activity

Accounting

Attachment

Templates

Do Not Call

Template Folders

Home

Locate

1

Actions

Appraisal to INSD

Appraisal to Insur

Audit Adjustment

Auto ID Card/Evid

Blank Letter to In:

Blank Letterhead'

BOR without Cov

D-1 to Insured*

Dummy Invoice*

Cancellation/Termination*

Check Request-Trust Account* Claim Acknowledgement Letter**

Cancellation/Warning*

🔋 Templates -

Title

Ø

Cli

On Demand

Access

Ö

Broker

Client

Company

Employee

Vendor

Finance Company

Other Interest

Links

Help

M

On Demand

🔮 Configure 🛛

File Edit

From home base, click on *Configure*, then choose *Attachment* then select *Templates*.

Templates may be created for different types of "Files". To choose between the types of templates, click on the word **Templates** on the title bar (right below the button bar) and make your selection.

To create a new Attachment

Template, Click the **Add** button to the left of the list and then enter a

Title for the new template in the field on the right.

There are five tabs that have information that can, or in some cases must, be filled in.

Associations

Select the *checkboxes* of the sources from which you wish to merge data for the new template. These are the choices:

- Contact (Allows you to pull a particular contact's information into your template)
- Claim (Allows you to pull specific claim detail information into your template)
- Service/Billing (Allows you to pull information from Policy / Line Detail and any components contained there)
- Related Accounts

Associations	Template Folder	Attachment Defaults	Distribution	Comments]
Merge Data	From				
Conta	act 🔲 Claim	🔽 Servicing/Billing) 📃 Relate	ed Accounts	
Loss notice	Liability	Property] Workers con	npensation	
Application	on Detail 🔺 Compensation				



- Loss Notice information can also be integrated. Since there are different types of ACORD loss notices, you must select which form(s) you would like to include. This area is only activated once you have selected *Claim* in the section above.
 - Auto Loss Notice
 - Liability Loss Notice
 - Property Loss Notice
 - Workers Compensation Loss Notice
- To choose **Application Detail** from which to merge data, click the **Add** button to the left of the list. You can choose one or multiple application detail. This allows you to pull in actual data from application detail such as limits, deductibles and schedule items such as vehicles, drivers, Forms & Endorsements or Additional Coverages.
 - In the popup window that displays, select the *checkbox* next to each desired application. Click *Finish* or press *[Enter]* when you have made your application detail selections.

Template Folder

Template folders can be used to limit the number of individual template selections each user must view when adding a new template at the Account level.

Note that **User Field Defaults** are a very important part of thinking about your template folder setups.

To choose a template folder or folders in which this template should reside, click the Add button

to the left of the list on this tab.

- In the pop-up window that displays, select the *checkbox* next to each desired folder. We will talk about template organization a little later in this session.
- Click *Finish* or press *[Enter]*.

Note the separate section that follows which addresses template folders in more detail.



Attachment Defaults

This area is where you determine the default Attachment Folder(s), Access Level and Activity Code you want to tie to this particular template.

Each of these settings can be overwritten once the end user is merging the document.

- Choose the *Folder* (and *Subfolder 1* and *Subfolder 2* if applicable) in which documents created with this attachment template will be stored by default.
- Indicate the default Access level for documents created with this attachment template.
- Choose an activity **Code** for documents created with this attachment template. Depending on your agency's workflows, tying a specific Activity Code to a particular template can be used as a milestone in the workflow that letter is used in.

🔮 Configure	
File Edit Areas Home	Locate Actions On Demand Access Links Help
Thursday, August 29 2:29 PM	Image: Second
Configure Home	System Events
Account	Description Image: Constraint of the second secon
Accounting	Acquire and Attach Image Add Account Not required
Activity	Add Attachment
Access Levels	Add Barcode Attachment Add Claim Activity code Description Default
Categories	Add Document Added document & Atta Yes
Codes	Add Policy NBPL New Personal opportuni No
Events	Adjust Receipt
Process Activities	Agent/broker of Record Change
Unsuccessful Reasons	Cancel If you want to default an activity code to an Attachment Template, you
Attachment	Certific must first go over to "Activity => Events" and add that activity code to the Certific "Add Document" event.
Interface	Certific
International	Copy A tab for your template document.
Job Management	Distributer me

Distribution

This area is used to determine how a letter will be generated/distributed if it is generated automatically either as a result of a further action of an Activity or as part of a Marketing campaign in reports.

- Choose the appropriate Paper type.
- Select the desired *Letter type*.
- Deselect the **Use Contact Method from Contact Detail** checkbox you do not want to use the contact method that is specified in the contact detail for accounts for which the templates will be used.
- If you deselect the checkbox, select the appropriate radio button:
 - Generate as email
 - Generate as mail
 - Generate as fax



Comments

Utilize the comments area to note any special situations that may exist in this particular template. Consider it a place to put a "bread crumb" trail to other possible editors of the template itself (it's a good idea to think of the "you" that might have to revise this document in a year or more from now as being a totally different person than the "you" of today; so be nice to your future self.)

Appendix 2: Attachment Template Folders

Templates can be assigned to a folder or folders to help organize the templates for ease of use by your end users.

Please note that once a template is assigned to a template folder, it is not visible in the User Interface unless you have selected that folder first. However, you can associate a specific template with multiple template folders.

If you haven't configured any Template Folders yet, Applied Epic comes with several folders by default. Any of these folders can be edited or deleted as they do not affect the templates associated with them.

Name

🔡 Template Folders - Client

Commercial Lines 🗋 Farm & Equine

Personal Lines

Accounting

Benefits

Bonds

Claims

To create template folders, access "Configure, Attachments" and click on "Template Folders"

This area defaults to Clients – click on the listview to change to any other entity in Epic to create template folders for those entities.



To add a folder, click on the Add Icon

Enter the folder Name

You can then add templates to this folder by clicking on the Add Icon under the Templates tab.

Detail Name Test Folder
Templates Structure
Structures 💽 All 🔿 Selected
Structure assigned to this folder
Ag 🔺 Branch Department Profit Center
×

e End User's Structure controlled under the Security area of Configure.

Microsoft [®] Word[®] – Introduction to Applied Epic Interface – Install Free Set: // PAGE 32

-	
	You can apply
	Structure restrictions to this template which controls
	access to the templates within the folder based on the
	Llear's Structure controlled under the Security area of

Detail

Name Test Folder

Templates residing in th

Policy/Line Type

Templates Structure

Title



By default, this area is set to "All". If you click the Selected radio button, then click the Add icon and mark the boxes to the left of each organization to select the restricted structure you want assigned to this template folder. Click Finish to save your changes to the folder's structure settings.

Once the folder is created, click Add to add another template folder or Finish if complete.

It is also possible to manage what template folders a template is associated with by editing the Template details and clicking on the Template Folder tab:

1	Templates - Client									
				r Det	ail ——					
	Title 🔺				Title	Binder To Custome	r			
	Audit to Insured				-	c /0 /2012 CUD	DODT			
-	Benefits New Account Setup Sheet				Enterea	6/8/2012 - SUP	PURT			
\times	Binder To Customer			Last	updated	7/12/2012 - M9	Homaker			
A	Blank Letter to Client			La	ast used	7/13/2012 - AW				
~	Bond - Indemnity Agreement									
	Bond - Request for Updated Underwri			Asso	ciations	Template Folder	Attachment D	efaults D		
	Bonds - Duplicate Payment			Eol	dore thi	is Template resi	recides in			
	BOR Acknowledgement	ient			Forders this remplater esides in					
	Cancel Letter		=		Name					
	Certificate Email Wording			~	Comme	rcial Lines				
	Change Acknowledgement			^	Person	al Lines				
	CL & Farm/Equipe New Account Setu									

To merge a document on a client account, once you have clicked, Attachment, Document, the first field that needs to be selected is Template Folder:

Then you will see the templates that have been associated with that folder:

Add Document

Add Docume	nt	b 1			
	(Select template 	O Blank/custom	document	
Template	Folder			*	
Te	emplate	Description 🔺			
		Accounting			
This Account	Related	Benefits			
Policy/line		Bonds			Contact
Include	history	Claims			Nama
T		Commercial Lines			Name
Type Policy a		Farm & Fouine			

				_
		Select template		
Template	e Folder	Commercial Lines	۷	
Template			۷	
		Description 🔺	^	-
This Account	Related	Audit to Insured		
Policy/line Include history		Binder To Customer		h
		Blank Letter to Client		
Туре	Policy #	BOR Acknowledgement		
		Cancel Letter	~	



Appendix 3: Other Classes and Handouts from the Proposal Track Series

- Proposals and the Power of Graphic Design This class also includes information on a Style Guide you may find useful for your design specifications.
- Microsoft[®] Word[®] Introduction to the Epic Interface Install Free Set Includes instructions for downloading and Importing templates.
- Intermediate Microsoft[®] Word[®] Formatting Applied Epic includes Tables, Borders & Shading, Section Breaks, headers & footers, etc.
- Leveraging Microsoft[®] Word[®] Styles Applied Epic
- Applied Epic / Microsoft[®] Word[®] IF, ASK, Math, SET, Bookmarks, INCLUDETEXT (Service Roles)
- Applied Epic / Microsoft[®] Word[®] Formatting Numbers, Text & Dates
- Applied Epic Proposal Workshop / Advanced Clinic this session has no handouts and will be based upon questions and issues brought to the group by the attendees.